
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

WEDNESDAY, 24TH MAY 2006 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 2.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for absence  
 
2. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman  
 
3. Declarations of Interest  
 
4. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
 
5. Terms of Reference (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 The Terms of Reference as agreed by Council on 12th April 2006 and set out in Part 3, 

Section 13 of the Constitution are attached for information.   
  
6. Corporate Plan 2006/07 - Priority Outcomes (Pages 3 - 18) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director (Finance & Performance)  
  
7. Filming and Recording of Meetings (Pages 19 - 28) 
 
 Report of the Audit Committee.    
  
8. Functioning of the Forward Plan (Pages 29 - 42) 
 
 Report of the Audit Committee.   
  
9. Process for Dealing with Consultation Papers (Pages 43 - 46) 
 
 Report of the Head of Democratic Services.    
  
10. Timetable of Future Meetings (Pages 47 - 50) 
 
 Report of the Head of Democratic Services.  

 
 
 
 
 

  

Public Document Pack



 

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Susan Bray (Chairman), Evelyn Archer, Maggie Chadwick, Anne Chapman, 

Geoff Knight, Joyce Pritchard and Peter Robinson 
 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Abbott Bryning, Gina Dowding and Alex Stone 

 
 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Gillian Noall, Head of Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582060 or 

email gnoall@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 

MARK CULLINAN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
TOWN HALL, 
LANCASTER LA1 1 PJ 
 
Published on Monday 15th May 2006 

 



SECTION 13 – COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE 
 
Composition: 7 Members of the Council on a PR basis, Chairman and 

Members of the Committee appointed by Council annually.  
Changes can be made by Council during the course of the 
year. 

 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To make appointments to Committees and outside bodies (other than those 

made at Annual Council). 

2. To determine the method of response and where necessary ratify responses 
(on behalf of the Council) to requests for responses to consultations made to 
the Council. 

3. To agree the agenda and make the arrangements for a ‘special’ Council 
meeting during the autumn on an annual basis for any of the following 
purposes: 

 
¾ Consideration of a single topic  
¾ Hearing an external speaker 
¾ Meeting in assembly or forum 
¾ Consideration of a local, regional or national issue 
¾ Or other purpose to be determined by the Council Business Committee. 
 

4. To agree the annual timetable of Lancaster City Council meetings and any other 
timetabling issues which may arise. 

 
5. To take urgent decisions on issues which fall within the Terms of Reference of 

Council, where it would not be practical to convene full Council, unless 
prohibited by statute. 

 
6. To agree amendments to all parts of the constitution in accordance with Article 

15, on a referral from the Audit Committee or Monitoring Officer other than the 
Articles (reserved to Council), Financial Regulations and Procedures and 
Contract Procedure Rules (reserved to Audit Committee) and Responsibility for 
Functions – Section 13 Council Business Committee and minor constitutional 
amendments which are the responsibility of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
7. To manage issues relating to Elected Members including training and 

development  
 
8. To agree civic and ceremonial matters in consultation with the Mayor. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
  
 

CORPORATE PLAN 2006/7 – PRIORITY OUTCOMES 
 

24TH MAY 2006 
 

Report of Corporate Director (Finance & Performance) 
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To agree the Key Performance Indicators of the Priority Outcomes section of the 2006/7 
Corporate Plan. 
 
 
 
This report is public 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the Committee agree the Key Performance Indicators of the Priority 

Outcomes as set out in Appendix A for inclusion in the 2006/7 Corporate Plan. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Council at its meeting on 12th April approved the 2006/7 Corporate Plan with the   

exception of the Key Performance Indicators ( KPIs) within the Priority Outcomes 
section, minute 133(1) refers.  

 
The process for concluding the Corporate Plan was also agreed at the meeting and set 
out below  :- 
 
Minute 133 (2) 
 
“That in respect of the Key Performance Indicators, further work be done to make 
these more specific and time bound, without changing the Priority Outcomes” 
 
Minute 133(3) 
 
“That subject to the decision of Council on item 13 of the agenda, approval of the final 
version of KPIs be delegated to the Council’s Business Committee. Failing that it be 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader and that the results be 
reported to Council” 

Agenda Item 6Page 3



 
 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 Further work has now taken place to produce a set of KPIs that are more specific and 

time bound wherever possible, and these are set out in the attached Appendix for 
the Committee’s consideration. 

 
2.2 At the time of writing this report, there are a few outstanding KPIs, 5.1, 6.1 to 6.3, that 

are still requiring some outturn information before they can be finalised. Officers are 
working on these and details will be circulated as soon as possible. 

 
 
 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 All relevant Services have been involved in preparing this latest set of KPIs prior to 

their inclusion in this report 
 
 
 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 Option 1 is to agree the KPIs as included in the Appendix 
 
4.2 Option 2 is to agree an amended version of the KPIs included in the Appendix 
 

The Officer preferred option is Option1.  
 
 
 
 
5.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 The Committee is asked to consider the Appendix and approve a set of KPIs for 

inclusion in the Corporate Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
The Priority Outcomes section is an integral part of the Council’s Corporate Plan which is a 
key document in the Policy Framework. 
 
 

Page 4



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None arising from this report. The 2006/7 budget and planning process provided for the 
development of the Corporate Plan and the Budget to be kept in line. As no amendments are 
to be proposed to the Priority Outcomes themselves, there will be no additional financial 
implications arising from the approval of the associated KPIs. 
 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Legal Services have been consulted and have no comments to add 
 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: R Muckle 
Telephone:  01524 582022 
E-mail: rmuckle@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: RCM/PriorityOutcomes/May 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
 

C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 P

LA
N

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

 
To

 d
el

iv
er

 v
al

ue
-fo

r-
m

on
ey

 c
us

to
m

er
-fo

cu
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

  
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

 1.
 T

o 
ke

ep
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 to
 a

 m
in

im
um

 w
hi

ls
t 

of
fe

rin
g 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 
  (IB

) 
 

 K
ee

p 
an

nu
al

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
be

lo
w

 4
.9

%
 

 A
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 o
ur

 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 A
ch

ie
ve

 o
ur

 a
nn

ua
l G

er
sh

on
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ta

rg
et

s 

 1.
1 

   
20

07
/8

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 
be

lo
w

 4
.9

%
 

 1.
2 

   
£6

25
,0

00
 o

f M
TF

S
 ta

rg
et

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
by

 M
ar

 ‘0
7 

 1.
3 

   
£1

.1
68

m
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
G

er
sh

on
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 b
y 

M
ar

 ’0
7.

 

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tra

te
gy

 
 V

FM
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 S
ta

r C
ha

m
be

r 

2.
   

 T
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t t
o 

en
su

re
 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

 a
re

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 d

ur
in

g 
ou

r d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s.

 
 (G

D
, P

Q
, I

B
) 

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

an
nu

al
  C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
P

la
n 

 
  D

ev
el

op
 a

 C
iti

ze
ns

 P
an

el
 

  D
ev

el
op

 A
nn

ua
l F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n 
 

 Ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f p

ub
lic

 re
sp

on
se

 
to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
‘C

or
e 

S
tra

te
gy

’ 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 

2.
1 

   
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r p
eo

pl
e 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 o
ur

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

. 
(In

 th
is

 fi
rs

t y
ea

r w
e 

w
ill

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

fig
ur

e.
)  

     2.
2.

   
  P

ub
lis

h 
C

or
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 - 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 
  Fo

rw
ar

d 
P

la
n 

     P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
do

cu
m

en
ts

. 

Page 7



 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

3.
   

  R
ef

oc
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 it

 p
ro

vi
de

s.
 

(A
S

) 
   

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 in

te
gr

at
e 

co
un

ci
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
to

  o
ur

 c
us

to
m

er
 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tre

s 
 

        

3.
1 

  A
ll 

P
ha

se
 1

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 o
ur

 C
us

to
m

er
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
en

tre
s 

by
 M

ar
 ’0

7 
 3.

2 
  I

nc
re

as
ed

 o
ve

ra
ll 

cu
st

om
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
fro

m
 4

8%
 to

 5
6%

 b
y 

D
ec

 ‘0
6 

   

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
ev

ie
w

  
 B

es
t V

al
ue

 G
en

er
al

 H
ou

se
ho

ld
 

S
ur

ve
y 

 C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
pe

rty
 S

tra
te

gy
 

    

4.
   

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 p
ub

lic
 to

ile
ts

 
(J

B
) 

 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
 C

lo
ck

 T
ow

er
 a

nd
 

A
rn

da
le

 T
oi

le
ts

; r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
ra

tio
na

lis
e 

pu
bl

ic
 to

ile
t p

ro
vi

si
on

 
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

4.
1 

  R
ef

ur
bi

sh
ed

 T
oi

le
ts

 in
 

op
en

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

P
ou

lto
n 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 
 

  

Page 8



 
C

O
R

PO
R

A
TE

 P
LA

N
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y 
 

To
 m

ak
e 

ou
r D

is
tr

ic
t a

 c
le

an
er

, h
ea

lth
ie

r p
la

ce
 

 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

5.
   

 C
le

an
er

 s
tre

et
s 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

  (J
B

, E
B

)  
          

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
st

re
et

 c
le

an
lin

es
s 

 
  R

un
ni

ng
 th

e 
‘P

ut
 L

itt
er

 in
 it

s 
P

la
ce

’ C
am

pa
ig

n 
       M

or
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t; 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
up

po
rt 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 
  

5.
1 

   
R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f l

itt
er

 
on

 th
e 

st
re

et
s 

fro
m

 ?
??

?%
 to

 
15

%
 b

y 
20

08
 (B

V
 1

99
 &

 L
A

A
 

S
tre

tc
h 

Ta
rg

et
)  

 5.
2 

   
Im

pr
ov

e 
le

ve
ls

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 s

tre
et

 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
fro

m
 5

5%
 in

 2
00

3/
04

 
to

 7
2%

 in
 2

00
6/

07
 (B

V
89

) 
 5.

3 
  I

nc
re

as
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
fix

ed
 p

en
al

ty
 n

ot
ic

es
 (r

el
at

in
g 

to
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nt

i s
oc

ia
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r)
 is

su
ed

 fr
om

 1
9 

in
 

20
05

/0
6 

to
 1

50
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 
 

La
nc

as
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 Li

tte
r S

tra
te

gy
 

 Li
tte

r C
ha

rte
r/ 

C
ha

m
be

r o
f T

ra
de

 
 P

ol
ic

e 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

S
tra

te
gy

 
    

6.
  R

ed
uc

e 
w

as
te

 in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t 
by

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
re

-u
se

 
 (J

B
) 

  

C
om

pl
et

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
ph

as
es

 o
f t

he
 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 w

he
el

ed
 b

in
s 

an
d 

ke
rb

si
de

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
      

6.
1 

 In
cr

ea
se

 %
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 

w
as

te
 re

cy
cl

ed
 fr

om
 ?

??
? 

in
 

20
05

/0
6 

to
 1

8%
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 
(B

V
82

a)
 

 6.
2 

  I
nc

re
as

e 
%

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 
w

as
te

 c
om

po
st

ed
 fr

om
 ?

??
? 

in
 

20
05

/0
6 

to
 ?

??
?%

 in
 2

00
6/

07
 

(B
V

82
b)

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
R

ec
yc

lin
g 

S
tra

te
gy

 
     Fu

rn
itu

re
 M

at
te

rs
 

Page 9



 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

      S
pe

ci
al

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

B
ul

ky
 M

at
te

rs
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
 

 6.
3 

 R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

K
g 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 fr

om
 ?

??
 in

 
20

05
/0

6 
to

 ?
??

 in
 2

00
6/

07
 (B

V
 

84
) 

 6.
4 

  I
nc

re
as

e 
%

 o
f b

ul
ky

 w
as

te
 

re
cy

cl
ed

 fr
om

 0
%

 in
 2

00
5/

06
 to

 
40

%
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 
 

7.
   

 T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
  (R

S
, J

H
, P

Q
) 

  

P
ro

vi
de

 le
is

ur
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

al
l s

ec
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

th
at

 a
im

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

he
al

th
ie

r 
lif

es
ty

le
s 

  O
ffe

r a
ll 

un
de

r 1
1’

s 
at

te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

sw
im

m
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
a 

bo
dy

 m
as

s 
in

de
x 

(B
M

I) 
te

st
 a

nd
 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
ity

 to
 

re
du

ce
 B

M
I 

    S
us

ta
in

 ru
ra

l s
po

rti
ng

/le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

    

7.
1 

  I
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 re
ce

iv
e 

co
ac

hi
ng

 
pe

r w
ee

k 
fro

m
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 2
2 

to
 2

5 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

  7.
2 

  I
nc

re
as

e 
%

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

un
de

r 1
1 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ta

ki
ng

 u
p 

th
e 

of
fe

r o
f 

a 
B

M
I t

es
t a

nd
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 

ac
tiv

ity
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fro

m
 0

 to
 2

0 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

  7.
3 

  I
nc

re
as

e 
us

ag
e 

at
 H

or
nb

y 
P

oo
l f

ro
m

 8
18

5 
to

 8
26

6 
by

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
  

   

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 S
po

rt 
E

ng
la

nd
 

 N
or

th
 W

es
t o

n 
th

e 
M

ov
e 

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
po

rt 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 E
ve

ry
 C

hi
ld

 M
at

te
rs

 
 Y

ou
th

 M
at

te
rs

 
 E

xt
en

de
d 

S
ch

oo
ls

 
       C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
C

yc
lin

g 
S

tra
te

gy
 

Page 10



 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

D
el

iv
er

 th
e 

C
yc

le
 E

ng
la

nd
 

de
m

on
st

ra
tio

n 
to

w
n 

pr
oj

ec
t  

   

7.
4 

  2
5%

 In
cr

ea
se

 c
yc

le
 tr

ip
s 

in
 

20
06

/0
7 

w
ith

 1
00

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
20

08
 (f

ro
m

 a
 b

as
el

in
e 

of
 6

93
 

tri
ps

 in
 2

00
5)

 

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t Z

on
e 

  

Page 11



C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 P

LA
N

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

 
To

 re
du

ce
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

th
e 

fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

8.
   

   
To

 re
du

ce
 C

rim
e 

an
d 

th
e 

Fe
ar

 o
f C

rim
e 

an
d 

to
 h

el
p 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fe

el
 s

af
er

 in
 th

ei
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
 (E

B
) 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

rim
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t. 
(In

 
20

03
/0

4 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 s
et

 a
 ta

rg
et

 to
 re

du
ce

 
al

l c
rim

e 
in

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

.  
C

ur
re

nt
 

in
di

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 th

at
 th

is
 s

tre
tc

hi
ng

 
ta

rg
et

 is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
) 

 

8.
1 

   
R

ed
uc

e 
al

l c
rim

e 
in

 D
is

tri
ct

 
by

 b
et

w
ee

n 
16

%
 -1

9%
 b

y 
20

08
 

(P
S

A
1)

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
S

tra
te

gy
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 

9.
   

 R
ed

uc
e 

al
co

ho
l r

el
at

ed
 

vi
ol

en
ce

 a
nd

 h
ar

m
; r

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l r
el

at
ed

 a
nt

i-s
oc

ia
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r. 
 (E

B
) 

 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e,
 P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 is
su

es
 

ar
ou

nd
 a

lc
oh

ol
 re

la
te

d 
vi

ol
en

ce
 

an
d 

ha
rm

 
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

Ac
t 2

00
3 

lic
en

sa
bl

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 p

ro
pe

rly
 li

ce
ns

ed
 

an
d 

th
at

 li
ce

nc
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 

9.
1 

   
D

ev
el

op
 a

 s
tra

te
gy

 to
 

re
du

ce
 a

lc
oh

ol
 re

la
te

d 
cr

im
e 

 
     9.

2 
   

Fu
lly

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

  o
f t

he
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ct

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
S

tra
te

gy
 

   Li
ce

ns
in

g 
S

tra
te

gy
 

 

Page 12



  
C

O
R

PO
R

A
TE

 P
LA

N
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y 
  

To
 le

ad
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
  

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

10
   

  T
o 

m
ak

e 
be

st
 u

se
 o

f 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

E
R

D
F 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t Z
on

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ne

w
 a

nd
 re

fu
rb

is
he

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 s

pa
ce

 
 (A

B
) 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

Lu
ne

si
de

 E
as

t 
   P

ro
vi

di
ng

 n
ew

 w
or

ks
pa

ce
 

    P
ro

vi
di

ng
 n

ew
 in

du
st

rie
s 

sp
ac

e 
 

10
.1

   
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ns
co

 
of

f-s
ite

 w
or

ks
 a

nd
 d

em
ol

iti
on

 o
f 

ga
s 

ho
ld

er
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

 10
.2

   
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 1
50

0m
² o

f 
ne

w
/re

fu
rb

is
he

d 
of

fic
e 

sp
ac

e 
at

 
4/

5 
D

al
to

n 
S

qu
ar

e 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 

 10
.3

   
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 P

or
t o

f 
H

ey
sh

am
 o

ffe
r b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

E
D

Z 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

 La
nc

as
te

r S
R

B
 D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

n 
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 
 M

or
ec

am
be

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 W

es
t E

nd
 M

as
te

rp
la

n 
 Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

 
11

   
 T

o 
re

ge
ne

ra
te

 th
e 

W
es

t E
nd

 
of

 M
or

ec
am

be
 

 (J
H

) 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

W
es

t E
nd

 o
f 

M
or

ec
am

be
 

   P
ro

gr
es

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

es
t E

nd
 m

as
te

rp
la

n 
   

11
.1

   
 T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
W

es
t E

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
 

   11
.2

   
 A

 1
0%

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 re

si
de

nt
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

12
 m

on
th

s 
on

 fr
om

 
th

e 
ba

se
lin

e 
su

rv
ey

 (A
pr

il 
20

07
 

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 La
nc

as
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 a
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
 W

es
t E

nd
 M

as
te

rp
la

n 
 P

ou
lto

n 
an

d 
W

es
t E

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

el
iv

er
y 

P
la

ns
 

 Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

Page 13



 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

12
.  

 A
 v

ar
ie

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
fe

st
iv

al
s 

an
d 

ev
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t  
 (R

S
) 

To
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
 

 G
re

en
 F

la
g 

st
at

us
 fo

r H
ap

py
 

M
ou

nt
 P

ar
k 

12
.1

   
  9

0%
 o

f a
gr

ee
d 

In
no

va
tio

n 
Fu

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 b

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

  12
.2

   
 G

re
en

 F
la

g 
st

at
us

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
 2

00
8 

Fe
st

iv
al

s 
In

no
va

tio
n 

Fu
nd

 
    E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 

13
.  

  T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

re
ta

il,
 le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l o
ffe

rin
g 

in
 

La
nc

as
te

r c
ity

 c
en

tre
 

 (A
B

,P
Q

) 

Ta
ke

 fo
rw

ar
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
ns

 
fo

r t
he

 C
an

al
 C

or
rid

or
 in

 
La

nc
as

te
r 

13
.1

   
 T

o 
pu

bl
ic

is
e 

an
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

m
as

te
rp

la
n 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
si

gn
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
C

en
tro

s 
M

ill
er

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 

  Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

14
.  

 T
o 

re
ge

ne
ra

te
 C

ar
nf

or
th

 a
nd

 
its

 ru
ra

l h
in

te
rla

nd
  

 (P
Q

) 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 C
ar

nf
or

th
 M

ar
ke

t 
To

w
ns

 In
iti

at
iv

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

 
14

.1
   

“In
cr

ea
se

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
th

e 
C

ar
nf

or
th

 A
re

a 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 w
ith

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t” 
(b

as
el

in
e 

ye
ar

) 
 14

.2
   

 T
hr

ou
gh

 M
TI

: 
� 

C
re

at
e 

6 
ne

w
 jo

bs
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 
� 

C
re

at
e 

3 
ne

w
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 
20

06
/0

7 
� 

H
ol

d 
12

 F
ar

m
er

s 
M

ar
ke

ts
  

 

C
A

R
P

 
 M

TI
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

Page 14



 
C

O
R

PO
R

A
TE

 P
LA

N
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y 
 

To
 s

up
po

rt
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

15
.  

   
 T

o 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
en

er
gy

 u
se

d 
by

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

(A
S

, G
D

) 
   

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

ll 
w

or
ks

 in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

E
ne

rg
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
(in

 0
5/

06
 o

ur
 e

ne
rg

y 
po

lic
y 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 to

ta
l s

av
in

gs
 o

f 
29

.8
3 

to
nn

es
 o

f C
O

2)
 

 E
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

at
 

S
al

t A
yr

e 
S

po
rts

 C
en

tre
. 

 Im
pl

em
en

t n
at

io
na

l /
 E

U
 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
 

15
.1

   
 R

ed
uc

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ne

rg
y 

us
e 

in
 C

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
in

gs
 fr

om
 

6,
56

3,
84

2k
w

h 
(0

5/
06

) t
o 

5,
32

8,
11

4k
w

h 
in

 0
8/

09
 

 15
.2

   
  R

ed
uc

e 
C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 C

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
in

gs
 fr

om
 

0.
06

66
 (0

5/
06

) t
o 

0.
05

7 
in

 9
08

/0
9)

 15
.3

   
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
%

 o
f e

ne
rg

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
us

es
 fr

om
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

so
ur

ce
s 

fro
m

 9
.9

0%
 in

 0
5/

06
 to

 
60

%
 in

 0
8/

09
 

E
ne

rg
y 

Fo
ru

m
 

 C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
pe

rty
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

 
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

16
.  

  T
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 in

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
 

 (J
G

, P
Q

) 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f u
ni

ts
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ru
ra

l a
nd

 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

s 
 

  

16
.1

   
In

cr
ea

se
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

 in
 d

is
tri

ct
 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 b

y 
35

 in
 2

00
6/

07
 a

nd
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 1

8 
of

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
in

 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
 

17
.  

  R
ed

uc
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

 (J
G

) 

R
ed

uc
e 

bo
th

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 
pr

es
en

tin
g 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
ho

m
el

es
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

 

17
.1

   
 In

cr
ea

se
  t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
ca

se
s 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 
re

so
lv

ed
 fr

om
 1

.4
2%

 in
 0

5/
06

 to
 

1.
75

%
 in

 0
6/

07
 (B

V
 2

13
) 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 
Y

M
C

A
 

 

Page 15



 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

       R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f H

M
O

’s
 

op
er

at
in

g 
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t  

 17
.2

   
 M

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f r

ep
ea

t 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

ca
se

s 
at

 0
 in

 
20

06
/0

7 
(B

V
21

4)
 

   17
.3

   
10

 %
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 n

um
be

rs
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

  
 

 W
es

t E
nd

 M
as

te
rp

la
n 

   

Page 16



C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 P

LA
N

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y 

 
To

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

18
.  

  C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e;
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
va

lid
at

es
 th

at
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 (IB

)  

D
el

iv
er

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

   To
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

da
ys

 lo
st

 
to

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
   U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 p

ay
 a

nd
 g

ra
di

ng
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 w
or

kf
or

ce
  

 

18
.1

   
%

 o
f I

m
p 

P
la

n 
ta

rg
et

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 (T

ar
ge

t 1
00

%
) 

   18
.2

   
 T

o 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

da
ys

 lo
st

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

 to
 1

0 
da

ys
 

pe
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

 b
y 

M
ar

 2
00

7 
  18

.3
   

  C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 
by

 M
ar

 2
00

7 
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

 D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l j

ud
ge

m
en

t 
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

 H
R

 S
tra

te
gy

 
 S

ic
kn

es
s 

A
bs

en
ce

 M
gt

 P
ol

ic
y 

  W
or

kf
or

ce
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 
19

.  
  T

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g,

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 re
po

rti
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

 (IB
) 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
re

vi
se

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

 Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 E
sc

en
de

nc
y 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l C

ou
nc

il 
 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

19
.1

   
Q

ua
rte

rly
 re

po
rti

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
ne

w
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 
20

06
 

   19
.2

   
 7

5%
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

po
rti

ng
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
E

sc
en

de
nc

y 
by

 M
ar

 ’0
7.

 
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

 E
sc

en
de

nc
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t 

Page 17



 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
 

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

 

 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
 

 
K

ey
 J

oi
nt

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

20
.  

  T
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 e
qu

al
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ity

 is
su

es
. 

 (G
D

) 
 

P
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 th
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 

20
.1

   
  A

ch
ie

ve
 le

ve
l 2

 o
f t

he
 

E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r l
oc

al
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
 

E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r L
oc

al
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

    

Page 18



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 

Filming and Recording of Council Meetings 
 

24th May, 2006 
 

Report of the Audit Committee 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To advise the Council Business Committee of the recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee with regard to filming and recording of council meetings, in order that the 
constitution can be amended. 
 
 
This report is public  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
That Business Committee agree to amend the constitution as set out in Appendix B, 
and that the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make consequential changes to the 
Media Guidelines and Protocol in line with the recommendations of Audit Committee 
as set out in (1), (2) and (3) below. 
 
1. Report 
 

The Audit Committee has considered the current procedures with regard to the 
filming and recording of meetings and at its meeting on 26th April 2006 Audit 
Committee agreed the following recommendations – a copy of the original report to 
Audit Committee is attached at Appendix A: 
 
(1) That filming/recording be allowed at meetings of Council, Cabinet, Audit, 

and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, so long as notice is given, via the 
Communications Officer, in advance. 

 
(2) That filming and webcasting of meetings be included within the remit of the 

Access to Services Review, in particular with regard to the meeting room 
facilities at either refurbished or new Town Halls 

 
Since the meeting officers have reviewed the list of meetings originally set out in the 
officer report identifying two omissions from the list and would suggest the additional 
inclusion of Council Business Committee and Budget and Performance Panel. 
 
(3) That additionally filming/recording be allowed at meetings of Council 

Business Committee and Budget and Performance Panel, so long as notice 
is given, via the Communications Officer, in advance. 

Agenda Item 7Page 19



 
 

 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
None directly. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None directly. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None arising from this report. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The only reference in local government legislation to the filming or recording of meetings is 
contained in Section 1(7) of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, which 
provides that nothing in the Act requires a body to permit the taking of photographs of any 
proceedings, or the use of any means to enable persons not present to see or hear any 
proceedings. 
 
Filming and Recording of meetings has in the past been prohibited under the Council’s 
constitution and previously standing orders.  Amendment to the Constitution is therefore 
required in order to implement the decision of the Audit Committee. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add.   
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: James Doble 
Telephone: 01524  582057 
 
E-mail: jdoble@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

Page 20



APPENDIX A  
AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
  
 

Broadcasting and Recording of Council Meetings 
26th April 2006 

 
Report of Head of Democratic Services 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise Members of the options, costs and benefits with regard to the broadcasting, 
recording and filming of meetings. 
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the Committee consider which, if any option they wish to adopt with 

regard to the filming/ broadcasting of meetings of full Council. 
 
(2) That filming and webcasting of meetings be included within the remit of the 

Access to Services Review, in particular with regard to the meeting room 
facilities at either refurbished or new Town Halls. 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 

At the end of 2004 the Media Guidelines Protocol was revised and agreed by the 
Audit Committee.  At the time consideration was given to allowing filming and/or 
recording of Council meetings which has been resisted in the past in order to avoid 
disruption.  Members were minded to consider allowing filming and recording at 
Council meetings but requested some further analysis of the risks involved and how 
they would be overcome.  This further report had been held back pending the future 
operation of full Council, which has now been agreed and has resulted  in some 
proposals in terms of a ‘special’ Council meeting and changes to public speaking 
which are likely to result in increased public participation and increased interest in 
Council meetings, which will inevitably lead to more requests from the media to 
capture the interaction between the public and Members.   
 
The current position is that journalists are currently able to record any exchanges in 
writing but are not permitted to record on tape. Filming has been refused at meetings 
for a number of reasons which are discussed later in this report; however, filming and 
recording has been allowed prior to meetings of Council. 
 
  
 

 

Page 21



2.0 Proposal Details 
 

Different Types of meetings 
 

Whilst filming and recording would be possible at all meetings there are a number of 
meetings where there would be difficulties with filming, particularly where there is a 
high degree of exempt material such as Appeals and Personnel Committee, or where 
evidence is being gathered from external sources and Members of the public such as 
Overview and Scrutiny Task Groups. Also there is a strong case to resist filming at 
meetings where the council is acting in a quasi-judicial role such as at Planning and 
Licensing Committees, where it can be argued that the same restrictions should 
apply as to those currently in force in a court of law. 
 
In light of this it is recommended that at this stage discussion of filming in meetings is 
limited to consideration of full Council, Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny and Audit 
Committee, all of which meet in the Council Chamber of Morecambe Town Hall, (with 
the exception of Cabinet which alternates between Morecambe and Lancaster Town 
Halls). 
 

2.1 Meeting Location 
 
There are a number of problems with filming in the Council Chamber at Morecambe 
Town Hall. The Council Chamber was originally designed for far fewer Councillors 
than the current 60 elected Members and 7 Officers who attend Council meetings, 
requiring the use of fold away tables. During meetings there are very narrow 
walkways, which do not allow access by wheelchairs, prams, or pushchairs. 
Members will be aware that it is already very difficult for Councillors to move in the 
Chamber during meetings of Council and when this is necessary, disruption is 
caused to the meeting.  
 
Currently the Council Chamber has no facilities for recording sound and does not 
have a sound system where a sound feed could be obtained for recording/ broadcast 
and no cameras. 
 

2.2 Filming  
 
In order to obtain broadcast quality pictures it would be necessary to use high quality 
expensive television cameras, due to this cost most television news organisations 
use large, portable cameras (shoulder or tripod mounted) and very few organisations 
such as the Houses of Parliament, National Assembly of Wales, and Scottish 
Parliament have fixed installations. 
 
Filming would in the view of Officers cause a significant amount of disruption to 
Council meetings.  Film crews would not wish to stay for a whole Council meeting 
and would inevitably cause disruption when joining/ leaving the meeting. Additionally 
they would have to reposition to film the Mayor and top table, or use multiple 
cameras, which is unlikely, due to cost. The only available space for filming would 
involve blocking a gangway, which in itself would cause disruption and block exits 
causing health and safety risks e.g. fire access, cables etc. 
 
Members also need to be aware that there would be no control over how footage of 
Council meetings would be used and inevitably editing would take place to meet 
scheduling limitations and to provide the appropriate footage required for a story. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



2.3 Webcasting 
 
Many Councils have now adopted webcasting of meetings and Civic events as a way 
of widening the opportunity to participate in meetings. Web casting would offer a 
viable option for Lancaster City Council particularly given the accommodation 
difficulties of meetings in the Morecambe Council Chamber. Webcasting is normally 
provided by remotely operated webcams, which enable different speakers to be 
pictured as they are speaking. Cameras can be controlled by an operator, which can 
be resource intensive and still requires the meeting to have a microphone system. 
More commonly cameras are controlled by each Councillor having a microphone, 
which when turned on focuses a camera on the speaker.  
 
There is a large financial outlay in terms of the equipment; infrastructure, software 
and hosting required to provide webcasting of meetings and this has not been 
identified within current budgets. The committee would need to be sure of the value 
of such an outlay in light of the proposals being put forward with regard to 
accommodation options as part of the Access to Services Review. 

 
Whilst systems are relatively simple to use, from viewing various webcasts few 
Councils have to date managed it effectively. 
  
Additionally there is little tangible evidence that webcasting has delivered real 
benefits to Councils that have purchased systems. It is questionable how many more 
people would view a webcast who would not attend a Council meeting. As a rule, 
individuals attend or view a meeting when there is an issue that interests them and 
few people ‘tune-in’ speculatively. 

 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 The Council’s Corporate Strategy, Legal, Finance, Information Services and 

Communications Officers have been consulted in the preparation of this report. 
 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1  

Option No.  OPTION IMPLICATIONS AND RISK 
ANALYSIS 

1 The principle of 
filming, recording 
and broadcasting 
Council meetings 
should be 
prohibited. 

This would effectively ensure 
continuation of the present situation 
with no view to improved access to 
meetings and is not consistent with 
the principles of modernised decision 
making and the Access to Services 
Review 

2 The principle of 
filming, recording 
and broadcasting 
meetings of 
Council, Cabinet, 
Audit, and Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee, should 
be endorsed but at 
present continue to 
be prohibited at 
Council meetings 

This approach would support the 
principles of open government, 
modernised decision making and the 
Access to Services Review, but would 
reflect the current difficulties the 
Council would experience in allowing 
filming/ recording within its current 
meeting rooms. 

Page 23



Option No.  OPTION IMPLICATIONS AND RISK 
ANALYSIS 

and should be 
reviewed as part of 
the Access to 
Services Review 
and 
Accommodation 
options outcomes. 

3 Filming/recording 
be permitted where 
there is pre-
arranged public 
participation at 
meetings of 
Council, Cabinet, 
Audit, and Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee. This will 
be permitted with 
the prior agreement 
from the Chief 
Executive and 
should be arranged 
through the 
Communications 
Officer.  

This will provide television crews/radio 
stations with the same access to 
report public participation as their print 
colleagues.  
 
The arena is already a public one but 
also a controlled one in that there are 
rules which set out who can speak, for 
how long and that prior notification will 
be given.  
 
The very fact that there is public 
participation will mean that the 
meeting will be less cohesive than 
other meetings so any disruption film 
crews/radio stations cause may not be 
as visible as would normally be the 
case. 
 
To minimise disruption any items due 
to be filmed would be moved to the 
start of the Agenda and Members 
would need to be advised of this.  For 
this reason film crews would need to 
inform the Council of their wish to do 
so at least 2 working days in advance 
of the meeting. 
 
All TV or radio crews would need to 
be managed.  Neither 
Communications nor Administration 
currently have the resources to 
provide this service. 
 
It would be necessary for any 
companies filming/recording to 
provide the Council with a copy of the 
entire film to ensure that there are no 
inconsistencies between their 
recording and the published minutes. 
 
Rules provided to members of the 
public intending to speak at the 
meetings will also inform potential 
speakers that there is a possibility 
they will be filmed/record by 
television/radio. 

Page 24



Option No.  OPTION IMPLICATIONS AND RISK 
ANALYSIS 

4 Filming/recording 
be allowed at any 
meeting of Council, 
Cabinet, Audit and 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
held in public so 
long as consent is 
obtained via the 
Communications 
Officer, in advance. 

In addition to the above points this 
may mean that even where there is no 
public participation meetings could be 
open to a fair amount of disruption. 
 

5 Filming/recording 
be allowed at 
meetings of 
Council, Cabinet, 
Audit, and Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee., so long 
as notice is given, 
via the 
Communications 
Officer, in advance. 

This would cause significant disruption 
to meetings due to the meeting 
facilities currently available to the 
Council. Additionally there would be 
health and safety issues in terms of 
gangways being blocked etc. 
Members attention is particularly 
drawn to the issues set out in section 
2.1 and the Legal implications of this 
report. 

6 Any of the above 
options 3 – 5, with 
the inclusion of 
webcasting. 

This would have to be the subject of a 
growth bid in the budget process and 
Members would need to ensure that 
this would achieve significant benefits 
to the Council, particularly in light of 
the Access to Services review 
proposals. 

  
 
5.0  Officer Preferred Option and Comments 
 
5.1 Officers would support Option 2 for the reasons as set out in the implications and risk 

analysis. 
 
6.0 Conclusion 
 

It is important that in addressing this issue the Committee considers the limitations of 
the current meeting rooms and balances this against the public involvement in the 
democratic process and the benefits to the Council of increasing this involvement. 

Page 25



 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None directly arising form this report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are clear financial and human resource implications to the authority in providing, 
operating and maintaining a wecasting system. Whilst there may be merit in the future 
consideration of webcasting, at this time it would not be prudent for them to be pursued in 
light of the changes that will be necessary to the Town Hall accommodation as part of the 
Access to Services Best Review, regardless of which option is chosen. 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The only reference in local government legislation to the filming or recording of meetings is 
contained in Section 1(7) of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, which 
provides that nothing in the Act requires a body to permit the taking of photographs of any 
proceedings, or the use of any means to enable persons not present to see or hear any 
proceedings. 
 
Filming and Recording of meetings has in the past been prohibited under the Council’s 
constitution and previously standing orders. The published Minutes of a meeting are the 
formal record of the meeting, but the existence of a sound or visual recording of a meeting 
would be able to be used in court, in terms of action against the authority or Members of the 
authority.  
 
It should be noted that Councillors unlike Members of Parliament do not have parliamentary 
privilege, which is absolute.  Qualified privilege will generally apply to Council and 
Committee meetings, so that Members will generally be protected from claims of defamation 
in the absence of malice. 
 
A further consideration that may be relevant to the issue of filming is the issue of child 
protection, and if the Council was to allow filming/ broadcasting of meetings it  would need to 
revisit its policies  with regard to children and young people being present at meetings. 
In making a decision on this issue Members would need to balance the risk to the authority 
against the benefits of allowing filming/ recording. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: James Doble 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: jdoble@lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 26



APPENDIX B  
 

 
Proposed Constitutional Amendment to Part 4, Rules of Procedure, Section 1 Council 
 

27 Filming and Recording of Council Meetings 
 

The press and media will be allowed to film and record meetings of Council, 
Cabinet, Audit Committee, Council Business Committee, Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Budget and Performance Panel, which are open to the press and 
public, so long as notice is given in advance, via the Communications Officer, in 
accordance with the Council’s Media Guidelines. 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 

Functioning of the Forward Plan 
 

24th May, 2006 
 

Report of the Audit Committee 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To advise the Council Business Committee of the recommendations of the Audit Committee 
on the Functioning of the Forward Plan, in order that the constitution can be amended. 
 
 
This report is public  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
That the Constitution be amended as set out in Appendix B, in line with the 
recommendations of Audit Committee as set out in (1) and (2) below. 
 
1. Report 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been considering the functioning of the 
Forward Plan and at its meeting on 8th March, 2006, made the following 
recommendations which were subsequently endorsed by Audit Committee on 26th 
April 2006, they are now presented to the Council Business Committee in order for 
the Constitution to be amended as required – a copy of the original report to 
Overview and Scrutiny is attached at Appendix A: 
 
(1) That a 12 month Forward Plan, with monthly updates, be recommended to 

the Audit Committee for the reasons set out above, with Officers being 
advised that Rule 15 may only be used in exceptional circumstances and 
with the approval of the Chief Executive, or in his absence, the relevant 
Corporate Director.  The 12 month Forward Plan to be introduced at the 
commencement of the new municipal year (May) so that Key Decisions can 
be fed into the process. 

 
(2) That an additional section be introduced into the Forward Plan Decision 

Form to be completed by the author stating the reasons for urgency.  
 
(3) That linkages are made between the Forward Planning process and the 

Council’s Consultation Strategy, as outlined above, creating a consultation 
culture within and outside the Council and also in accordance with good 
practice. 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 29



 

(4) That it be noted that the Forward Plan remains the responsibility of the 
Leader of the Council.   

 
(5)  That it be noted that an additional section has already been added to the 

report template to indicate when an issue was published in the Forward 
Plan module.   

 
(6)  That it be noted that the Committee Management System Forward Plan will 

be rolled out and is included in Service Business Plans for implementation 
as soon as possible.  

 
(7)  That the electronic submission of Forward Plan items be introduced with 

the above mentioned information contained within the submission form. 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
None directly. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None directly. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None arising from this report. 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and would add that the introduction of a 12 
month Forward Plan may also help strengthen financial planning, through the earlier 
identification of any issues or proposals that may have financial implications for the future. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None arising from this report. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add.   
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: James Doble 
Telephone: 01524  582057 
 
E-mail: jdoble@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 30



 

APPENDIX A  
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
 
 

FUNCTIONING OF THE FORWARD PLAN 
8TH MARCH 2006 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (CENTRAL 

SERVICES) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To report upon and advise the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, of the function of the 
Forward Plan in order to identify areas where the Plan may be failing to meet member 
expectations and ensuring there is transparency in the decision making process.   
 
This report is to be considered in the public part of the meeting.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Members consider the report.   
 
(2) That Members consider what recommendations, if any, they wish to make to 

the Audit Committee with regard to the efficiency and functioning of the 
Forward Plan process and amendments to the Constitution in this respect.   

 
(3) That Cabinet, and in particular the Leader of the Council, be informed of the 

recommendations to allow their comments to be included in the report referred 
to in (2) above. 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 At its meeting, held on 8th June 2005, the Committee considered a report of 

Councillor Stuart Langhorn, Pre-decision Scrutiny Champion, regarding the 
functioning of the City Council’s Forward Plan (Minute 5 refers).  After considering the 
report the Committee resolved: - 
 
• That the Forward Plan process be reviewed and that consideration be given 

to replacing the current system (four month rolling Forward Plan) with a rolling 
12-month Forward Plan updated on a monthly basis. 

 
• That all Services be requested to review their Business Plan to provide details 

of forthcoming Key Decisions. 
 
• That performance monitoring data be collected on compliance with the 

Forward Plan, that this be made available to Members and that Management 
intervention take place for services that repeatedly fail to publish Key 
Decisions in advance. 

 
• That a review takes place of the Forward Plan form and that Officer contact 

details be included. 

Page 31



 

 
• That all Services ensure arrangements are in place to brief Cabinet Members 

on Key Decisions which are added to the Forward Plan. 
 
• That all of the following should be justified on grounds of urgency and an 

explanation given why they were not included earlier. 
 

� All Key Decisions not included in the Forward Plan (at the time of 
publication) and sent out after publication under a separate cover.  

� Urgent Key Decisions to which no notice has been given.  
� All decisions where only a months notice is given. 

 
1.2 In view of the above previous resolutions the following actions have been 

undertaken: - 
 

Committee resolution Action taken 
That the Forward Plan process be 
reviewed and that consideration be given 
to replacing the current system (four 
month rolling Forward Plan) with a rolling 
12-month Forward Plan updated on a 
monthly basis. 

Report produced for consideration by 
Members of this Committee, prior to 
submission to the Audit Committee.   

That all Services be requested to review 
their Business Plan to provide details of 
forthcoming Key Decisions. 

To be actioned if agreed by the Audit 
Committee.  Members attention is also 
drawn to proposals regarding linkages 
between Forward Plan information and 
the Council’s Consultation Strategy.   

That performance monitoring data be 
collected on compliance with the Forward 
Plan, that this be made available to 
Members and that Management 
intervention take place for services that 
repeatedly fail to publish Key Decisions 
in advance. 

This process has commenced and data 
provided since the last report is set out 
within Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
There is also increased Management 
Team focus on the Forward Plan.  

That a review takes place of the Forward 
Plan form and that Officer contact details 
be included. 

Report and Appendix produced for 
consideration by Members of this 
Committee, prior to submission to the 
Audit Committee. 

That all Services ensure arrangements 
are in place to brief Cabinet Members on 
Key Decisions which are added to the 
Forward Plan. 

To be incorporated within the Council’s 
procedures rules as good practice. This 
largely happens now but there have been 
exceptions and by formalising this in 
procedure rules will strengthen the 
position.   

That all of the following should be 
justified on grounds of urgency and an 
explanation given why they were not 
included earlier. 

 
� All Key Decisions not included in the 

Forward Plan (at the time of 
publication) and sent out after 
publication under a separate cover.  

� Urgent Key Decisions to which no 
notice has been given.  

� All decisions where only a months 
notice is given. 

 

Amended Key Decision Form attached 
with Section referring to “Urgency”. The 
Appendix has been produced for 
consideration by Members of this 
Committee, prior to submission to the 
Audit Committee.   

Page 32



 

 
Members are also advised that there has been an increased Management Team 
focus on the Forward Plan, with the Team considering the Plan at their meetings to 
ensure that each Cabinet cycle receives decision reports identified for that meeting or 
an explanation as to why it will not be presented to that meeting.   

 
2.0 Details 
 
2.1 Forward Plan process: 

 
Officers have carried out a review of the Forward Plan and the options available to 
the City Council regarding the operation of the Forward Planning process.  These are 
set out below for Members’ consideration. 

 
2.2 Key Decision Process: 

 
Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested consideration of the 
Forward Plan process, particularly a 12 month Forward Plan updated on a monthly 
basis.  A number of other local authorities already have a 12 month Forward Plan, 
where additional items can be added as required in order to ensure that the process 
complies with the Regulations brought about by the Local Government Act 2000.  
One of the main advantages of adopting such an approach is that Officers will be 
aware at the stage of formulating their Service Business Plans, of cyclical and major 
issues to be considered by the City Council in the forthcoming Municipal Year and 
how they contribute to the Corporate Plan priorities.  Therefore, when Service Plans 
are agreed, Key Decisions should be identified and entered into the 12 month 
Forward Plan at that stage.  This process would assist in focusing the minds of 
Service Heads on the decisions to be taken in the forthcoming year and would aid 
the City Council’s forward planning process, increase awareness of the matters that 
require a decision, enable pre-scrutiny of Cabinet decisions and ensure that the 
decision-making process is transparent and operates in a more cohesive manner.   
 
Service Business Plans will be available from the commencement of each financial 
year (April).  Therefore, it would seem appropriate for the 12 month Forward Plan to 
be introduced at the commencement of the new municipal year (May) so that Key 
Decisions can be fed into the process.  Members attention is also drawn to the 
“Groups Identified for Consultation” section of the Key Decision Notice.  In order to 
ensure that the Key Decision Notice is adequately completed, effective consultation 
should take place in accordance with the principles of Best Value and the 
Government’s Agenda for Modernising Local Government.  It is, therefore, suggested 
that linkages are made between the Forward Planning process and the Council’s 
Consultation Strategy.  This would also assist in creating a consultation culture both 
within and outside the Council and would also be in accordance with good practice.   
 
A further issue regarding the current process is the additional Officer time that is 
currently required to ensure that late items are published after the publication of the 
Forward Plan, particularly where a particular Service has not planned ahead and 
provided the relevant notice within the published timescales.  Currently this can mean 
that reports are published later than expected giving Members less time to consider 
reports in order to make informed decisions, causing additional workload for Officers 
and effectively preventing scrutiny.   
 
Issues which occur after the formulation of the 12 month Forward Plan could be 
added, with the City Council’s electronic Committee Management System being used 
to place such items on the City Council’s website and Members being informed via e-
mail (see below) in accordance with prescribed deadlines, usually at least 14 days 
prior to the commencement of the statutory three month period covered by the 
Forward Plan, therefore enabling pre-decision scrutiny.  It is recommended that these 

Page 33



 

rolling amendments are the exception as opposed to the rule and should not be used 
for cases where Service Business Plans have not been adequately prepared. 
 
Members are also advised of Rule 15 of the constitution – General Exception (Part 4, 
Section 2 - Access to Information Procedure Rules), where the Notice has not been 
included in the original Forward Plan, or monthly update and notice (as referred to in 
the previous paragraph) cannot be given.  It is suggested, that in order to ensure that 
Regulation 15 is not used unnecessarily, it is proposed to introduce an additional 
section into the Forward Plan Decision Notice Form to be completed by the author 
stating the reasons for urgency.   
 
A 12 month Forward Plan will enable Officers to make the necessary arrangements 
to ensure that reports are provided for and cleared by the statutory Officers in plenty 
of time to enable compliance with relevant legislation and submitted in accordance 
with the City Council’s Agenda deadlines. Members of the City Council will have 
more time to consider issues and their implications prior to a decision being required. 
 
Members are reminded that the Forward Plan is the responsibility of the Leader of 
the Council and the Plan is submitted to him for approval and copied to the remaining 
Cabinet Members prior to publication.  These current arrangements would still remain 
under this proposal with the Leader being provided with the 12 month Forward Plan 
for approval, together with any further Notices provided after the publication of the 
Plan.   
 
Appendices 2 and 3 show the current and proposed Forward Plan Key Decision 
Notices. 
 
Officer Recommendations: 
 
(1) That a 12 month Forward Plan, with monthly updates, be recommended to 

the Audit Committee for the reasons set out above, with Officers being 
advised that Rule 15 may only be used in exceptional circumstances and 
with the approval of the Chief Executive, or in his absence, the relevant 
Corporate Director.  The 12 month Forward Plan to be introduced at the 
commencement of the new municipal year (May) so that Key Decisions can 
be fed into the process. 

 
(2) That an additional section be introduced into the Forward Plan Decision 

Form to be completed by the author stating the reasons for urgency.  
 
(3) That linkages are made between the Forward Planning process and the 

Council’s Consultation Strategy, as outlined above, creating a consultation 
culture within and outside the Council and also in accordance with good 
practice. 

 
(4) That it be noted that the Forward Plan remains the responsibility of the 

Leader of the Council.   
 

2.3 Report Template: 
 
To ensure that there is a check on issues being included in the Forward Plan an 
additional section has been added to the report writing template.  The additional 
section is headed “Forward Plan” and the report authors are now required to 
complete the section with the month when the Notice was published in the Forward 
Plan.  This will assist in ensuring that items are not considered prematurely by 
Members, where inadequate notice has been given.  This amendment has already 
been implemented by Officers and is now used by report authors when producing 
reports for Cabinet and its Committees.   

Page 34



 

2.4 Committee Management System and Key Decision Form: 
 
The Committee Management System provides a Forward Plan module.  It is intended 
to take this opportunity to role out this module.  In doing so this will provide for an 
effective means for Officers to submit Forward Plan items on-line and directly into the 
System, using a revised proforma to take account of the recommendations as set out 
above.   
 
Instead of filling in a template, in future Officers will complete a form on the Council’s 
intranet, directly in to the Committee Management System. 
 
The electronic form will allow submission of the following information: - 
 
• Additional space for areas that require more of a description, i.e. consultations 

etc. 
• Greater detail of the proposals and the likely suggested Officer 

recommendations in the forthcoming report. 
• Confirmation that the Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility has been 

briefed upon the matter. 
• Identification and contact details of the author of the Notice. 
• Additional requirement for the reason to be stated why a report has not been 

included in the original Forward Plan and why it is now urgent. 
 
Officer Recommendations: 
 
(1) That it be noted that an additional section has already been added to the 

report template, as outlined above.   
 
(2) That it be noted that the Committee Management System Forward Plan will 

be rolled out of a module included in Service Business Plans for 
implementation as soon as possible.  

 
(3)  That the electronic submission of Forward Plan items be introduced with 

the above mentioned information contained within the submission form. 
 

2.5 Analysis of decisions taken: 
 
The table set out at Appendix 1 shows the number of decisions contained within the 
Forward Plan and also urgent decisions published in accordance with the 
Regulations since the last report to this Committee (8th June 2005) to date.  If this 
were to be analysed in the same way as in the previous report to Overview and 
Scrutiny, it would read: 
 
• There were 145 (137) Key Decisions since the last report in June 2005.  
• 135 (101) Key Decisions were submitted in time to be included in the relevant 

months Forward Plan. 
- 109 (32) decisions had more than one months notice and therefore allowing 
pre-decision scrutiny to take place.  
- 26 (69) decisions, gave little or no opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny as 
only one months notice was given.  

• 10 (34) items were submitted late, that is had to be published after the Forward 
Plan and resulted in less than one months notice being given and realistically 
prevented pre-decision scrutiny.  

• Only 3 (2) decisions had to be considered as Urgent Key decisions, which is not 
felt to be excessively high or a cause for concern. 

 

Page 35



 

The figures shown above in brackets provide details from the previous report, which 
advised of statistics for the Municipal Year 2004/05.  This report only covers the 
period from that report to date.   
 
The analysis shows, to date:  
• 8 more Key Decisions. 
• 34 more Key Decisions submitted in time to be included in the relevant months 

Forward Plan.  
• 77 more decisions that had more than one months notice and therefore allowing 

pre-decision scrutiny to take place. 
• 43 fewer decisions, gave little or no opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny as only 

one months notice was given. 
• 24 fewer items were submitted late, that is had to be published after the Forward 

Plan and resulted in less than one months notice being given and realistically 
prevented pre-decision scrutiny. 

• 1 more decision had to be considered as Urgent Key decisions, which is not felt 
to be excessively high or a cause for concern. 

 
These statistics suggest that the operation of the Forward Plan is settling down and 
improving as report writers become more familiar with it.  
 

3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 In order to improve and assist the City Council’s Forward Plan process, providing a 

transparent decision-making process, the Committee is asked to consider the Officer 
recommendations, as set out within the report, and any other proposals which may 
be put forward at the meeting in order to recommend improvements to Cabinet.   

 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
No direct implications arising from this report.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.   
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The S151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add.   
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Legal Services have been consulted and have no further comments to add.   
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add.   
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None.   

Contact Officer: Stephen Metcalfe 
Telephone: 01524 582073 
E-mail: smetcalfe@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

Page 36



 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
O

F 
D

EC
IS

IO
N

S 
TA

K
EN

 
M

O
N

TH
 

FO
R

W
A

R
D

 
PL

A
N

 P
U

B
LI

SH
ED

 A
N

D
 

D
U

R
A

TI
O

N
 

N
U

M
B

ER
 

O
F 

K
EY

 
D

EC
IS

IO
N

S 
PU

B
LI

SH
ED

 
IN

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

LA
N

 O
N

E 
M

O
N

TH
 

PR
IO

R
 

TO
 

D
EC

IS
IO

N
  

D
EC

IS
IO

N
S 

SU
B

M
IT

TE
D

 
W

IT
H

 M
O

R
E 

TH
A

N
 O

N
E 

M
O

N
TH

S 
N

O
TI

C
E 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

K
EY

 
D

EC
IS

IO
N

S 
W

H
ER

E 
A

N
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

N
O

TI
C

E 
W

A
S 

PU
B

LI
SH

ED
 

LE
SS

 
TH

A
N

 
A

 
M

O
N

TH
 

B
EF

O
R

E 
TH

E 
D

EC
IS

IO
N

 
W

A
S 

M
A

D
E 

A
N

D
 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
R

ES
PO

N
SI

B
LE

 

IT
EM

S 
O

F 
U

R
G

EN
T 

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

TH
A

T 
W

ER
E 

K
EY

 
D

EC
IS

IO
N

S 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
ED

 
B

Y 
C

A
B

IN
ET

 

M
ay

 2
00

5 
(d

ur
at

io
n 

Ju
ne

 –
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5)

. 
0 

4 
2 

fo
r J

un
e,

 1
 o

f w
hi

ch
 w

as
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

U
rg

en
t B

us
in

es
s 

P
ro

ce
du

re
. 

B
ot

h 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tro

l S
er

vi
ce

. 

-. 

Ju
ne

 2
00

5 
(d

ur
at

io
n 

Ju
ly

 –
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

5)
. 

5 
7 

2 
fo

r J
ul

y,
 1

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
1 

by
 

P
ro

pe
rty

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

-. 

Ju
ly

 2
00

5 
(d

ur
at

io
n 

A
ug

us
t 

– 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5)

. 
0 

(N
o 

A
ug

us
t m

ee
tin

g)
. 

9 
N

/a
. 

N
/a

. 

A
ug

us
t 

20
05

 
(d

ur
at

io
n 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

– 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
05

). 

9 
12

 
- 

-. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
05

 (
du

ra
tio

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
05

 
– 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

). 

2 
14

 
- 

-. 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

05
 

(d
ur

at
io

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 
– 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

6)
. 

1 
13

 
1 

fo
r N

ov
em

be
r a

nd
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5,
 

N
ov

em
be

r m
ee

tin
g 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g 
as

 U
rg

en
t B

us
in

es
s,

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

1 

Page 37



 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

05
 (

du
ra

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

05
 –

 M
ar

ch
 

20
06

). 
 

6 
15

 
3 

fo
r D

ec
em

be
r, 

1 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
A

rts
 a

nd
 

E
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

2 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
Le

is
ur

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

1 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

05
 (

du
ra

tio
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

– 
A

pr
il 

20
06

). 
1 

16
 

- 
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 
(d

ur
at

io
n 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 –
 M

ay
 2

00
6)

. 
1 

14
 

1 
fo

r F
eb

ru
ar

y,
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 
by

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

To
ur

is
m

 S
er

vi
ce

.  
 

N
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 

w
rit

in
g 

th
e 

re
po

rt.
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

06
 

(d
ur

at
io

n 
M

ar
ch

 –
 J

un
e 

20
06

). 
1 

5 
1 

fo
r M

ar
ch

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
C

C
S

. 
N

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 
w

rit
in

g 
th

e 
re

po
rt.

 
  

Page 38



 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Current Forward Plan Notice 
 

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL    ………………. 2005 
 

KEY DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET OR  
KEY DECISIONS DELEGATED BY CABINET TO OFFICERS 

 
SERVICE:  

 
REFERENCE:  

ITEM FOR DECISION:  
 

CABINET  YES/NO DECISION MAKER: 
 

DELEGATED OFFICER YES/NO 

RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR 

KEY DECISION 
CRITERIA: 
 

EXCESS 
FINANCIAL  
THRESHOLD 
AS PER KEY 
DECISION 
CRITERIA 

YES/NO 

COMMUNITY IMPACT IE HAVING A 
SIGNIFICANT AND LASTING IMPACT ON: 
(I) REPUTATION OF COUNCIL 
(II) ENVIRONMENT 
(III) LOCAL ECONOMY 
(IV) COMMUNITY SAFETY 
(V) HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUAL 
 OPPORTUNITIES OR RACIAL 
 EQUALITY 

YES/NO 

SUMMARY 
DESCRIPTION OF 
RELEVANT ISSUES: 

 

DATE OF CABINET 
MEETING/DATE FOR 
OFFICER DECISION 
Delete not applicable 

 

LIST OF 
BACKGROUND 
PAPERS FOR 
CONSIDERATION: 

 

GROUPS IDENTIFIED 
FOR 
CONSULTATION: 

 

PROCESS FOR 
MAKING 
REPRESENTATIONS 
TO DECISION 
MAKER: 

 

DATE FOR 
REPRESENTATIONS 
TO BE RECEIVED: 

 

 
 

 

Page 39



 

APPENDIX B  
 
Proposed Constitutional Amendment to Part 4 Rules of Procedure, Section 2 Access 
to Information 
 
13. PROCEDURE BEFORE TAKING KEY DECISIONS 
 

Subject to Rule 15 (general exception) and Rule 16 (special urgency), a Key 
Decision may not be taken unless: 

 
(a) a notice (called here a Forward Plan)  has been published in connection with 

the matter in question, where this is additional to the published Forward 
Plan or not included in a monthly update or less than four months 
notice has been given, reasons for urgency must be given on the notice; 

 
(b) at least five days have elapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and  

 
(c) where the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet or its 

committees, notice of the meeting has been given in accordance with Rule 4 
(notice of meetings). 

 
 
14. THE FORWARD PLAN 
 
14.1 Period of Forward Plan 
 

Forward plans will be prepared by the leader to cover a period of four twelve months, 
beginning with the first day of the new municipal year any month.  They Updates 
will be prepared on a monthly basis. and subsequent plans will cover a period 
beginning with the first day of the second month covered by the update preceding 
plan. 

 
14.2 Contents of Forward Plan 
 

The Forward Plan will contain matters which the leader has reason to believe will be 
subject of a Key Decision to be taken by the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, 
Officers, Area Committees or under joint arrangements in the course of the discharge 
of a Cabinet function during the period covered by the plan.  It will describe the 
following particulars in so far as the information is available or might reasonably be 
obtained: 

 
 

(a) the matter in respect of which a decision is to be made; 
 
 (b) where the decision taker is an individual, his/her name, title, if any and where 

the decision taker is a body, its name and details of membership; 
 
 (c) the date on which, or the period within which, the decision will be taken; 
 
 (d) the identity of the principal groups whom the decision maker proposes to consult 

before taking the decision; 
 
 (e) the means by which any such consultation is proposed to be undertaken; 
 

Page 40



 

 (f) the steps any person might take who wishes to make representations to the Cabinet 
or decision taker about the matter in respect of which the decision is to be made, and 
the date by which those steps must be taken; and 

 
 (g) a list of the documents submitted to the decision taker for consideration in  relation to 

the matter. 
 

The Forward Plan must be published at least fourteen days before the start of the period 
covered.  The Proper Officer will publish once a year a notice in at least one newspaper 
circulating in the area, stating: 

 
(i) that Key Decisions are to be taken on behalf of the Council; 

 
 (ii) that a Forward Plan containing particulars of the matters on which decisions are to be 

taken will be prepared on a monthly basis; 
 

 (iii) that the plan will contain details of the Key Decisions to be made for the four twelve 
month period following its publication; 

 
 (iv) that each plan will be available for inspection at reasonable hours free of charge at 

Lancaster Town Hall and Morecambe Town Hall; 
 

 (v) that each plan will contain a list of the documents submitted to the decision takers for 
consideration in  relation to the Key Decisions on the plan; 

 
 (vi) the address from which, subject to any prohibition or restriction on their disclosure, 

copies of, or extracts from, any document listed in the Forward Plan is available; 
 

 (vii) that other documents may be submitted to decision takers; 
 

 (viii) the procedure for requesting details of documents (if any) as they become available; 
and 

 
 (ix) the dates on each month in the following year on which each when the Forward Plan 

and updates will be published and available to the public at the Council’s offices. 
 

 Exempt information need not be included in a Forward Plan and confidential information 
cannot be included. 

 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE   
 

Process for Dealing with Consultation Papers  
24th May 2006 

Report of Head of Democratic Services 
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider the options for dealing with consultation papers and agree a process for 
implementation.  

 
 
This report is public  
 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
 That a process for responding effectively to consultation papers be agreed for 

immediate implementation. 
  
2. CURRENT PROCESS FOR RESPONDING TO CONSULTATION PAPERS 
 
2.1 Prior to May 2004 decisions had been taken by the Chief Executive and relevant 

Review Board Chairman on whether or not the Council should respond to consultation 
papers and if so whether this should be referred to Political Groups and non-aligned 
Members to respond individually or to officers to prepare a draft response for Council’s 
consideration. 

 
2.2 With the introduction of the new Overview and Scrutiny structure however a change 

was required which provided the opportunity to consider further options to improve the 
effectiveness of the process and in June 2004 the following process was introduced: 
(Council Minute 27(2004/05) refers). 

 
(1) That on receipt of any consultation papers, the Chief Executive, Chairman of 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Vice-Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Leader of the Council decide whether the Council should 
respond and how a response should be agreed.   

 
(2) That, if it is decided that a response should be made, the consultation paper be 

either referred to political groups and non-aligned Members to respond 
individually, to officers to prepare a draft response for Council’s consideration, for 
officers to respond directly or other variation at the discretion of those consulted. 

 
(3) That, where there is no agreement between the Members consulted, the Chief 

Executive act on the majority view. 
 
2.3 The process to decide whether or not a response is required is managed by a Senior 

Officer in Democratic Services who also then co-ordinates the preparation of a 
response by the most appropriate officer for approval in accordance with Member 
instructions.  Where the consultation paper is mostly related to technical issues an 

Agenda Item 9Page 43



officer response is usually agreed with the approval of the relevant Cabinet member 
being sought where there is reference to matters of policy. 

 
2.4 It should be noted that there are a large number of consultation papers published 

particularly by central government and resources do not always permit a worthwhile 
response to be prepared in the time allowed and it is often therefore necessary to 
prioritise and respond only where the Council has particularly strong views. 

 
2.5 It has now been agreed that responsibility for consultation papers should fall to the 

Council Business Committee and it is necessary to consider the options for managing 
this process. 

 
3. OPTIONS TO MANAGE THE PROCESS FOR RESPONDING EFFECTIVELY TO 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS 
 
3.1 There are 2 stages to the process to respond to consultation papers: 

 
Stage One 
To determine if a response should be made and if so which of the options in Stage 
Two should be pursued to prepare and approve a response  
 
Stage Two 
To approve the response. 
 
The options available for each stage are listed below: 
 

3.2 Stage One – options -   
 

i. The Committee makes the decision at a meeting 
 
ii. The decision is delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with all 

Committee Members – this would be undertaken electronically with strict 
deadlines for response 

 
iii. The decision is delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with a small 

number of Committee Members such as the Chairman, the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman or  a small number of members nominated by the committee for the 
purpose – this would be undertaken electronically with strict deadlines for 
response  

 
iv. The decision is delegated to the Chief Executive 

 
3.3 Stage Two – options – 

 
i. The Committee approves a draft response prepared by officers submitted to a 

meeting 
 

ii. The Chief Executive approves a response having consulted all Members of the 
Committee electronically 

 
iii. Approval of a response is delegated to: 

− a small sub-committee of say 3 Members of the Committee 
− the Chairman of the Committee 
− the relevant Cabinet Member 
− the Chief Executive 

Page 44



 
iv. Refer the preparation of the response to individual political groups if required 

  
 

 4. OPTIONS ANALYSIS 
 

4.1 Stage One – options -   
 

i. The timescales required to submit a report to a meeting of the Committee even if 
this were to meet frequently make this option unrealistic to enable responses to 
be prepared to meet deadlines. 

 
ii. The use of electronic methods of consultation mean that this option can be 

utilised on a regular basis with additional urgent contact where particularly short 
deadlines are imposed.  It would rely upon all Members of the Committee 
reading and responding to emails on a regular basis and a strict time limit for 
response would need to be imposed.  The method has the advantage of allowing 
Member views to be taken into account on a PR basis.  A regular report would 
be submitted to the Committee on decisions made. 

 
iii. Whilst consulting a smaller number of Members could be seen as a benefit, the 

advantage of the involvement of Members on a PR basis would be lost. 
 

iv. The Chief Executive is in a position to be aware of or to take advice from the 
appropriate officer on the relevance to the Council of particular consultation 
papers.  He can also take a view as to whether resources are readily available to 
prepare the necessary response.  However there would be no member 
involvement in deciding whether or not a response was required. 

 
4.2 Stage Two – options – 

 
i. The Committee approves a draft response prepared by officers submitted to a 

meeting 
 
ii. The Chief Executive approves a response having consulted all Members of the 

Committee electronically 
 
iii. Approval of a response is delegated to: 

− a small sub-committee of say 3 Members of the Committee 
− the Chairman of the Committee 
− the relevant Cabinet Member 
− the Chief Executive 
− any other relevant individual or body of the Council 

 
It would be possible for any of the above options to be available as a choice in 
deciding that a response should be prepared.  Option (i) could only be utilised where 
there was sufficient time available, although for the type of issues where members 
may wish to debate a response this is often the case.  Options (ii) and (iii) would both 
involve consultation by email which as in Stage One, option (ii) above would rely upon 
all Members of the Committee reading and responding to emails on a regular basis 
and a strict time limit for response would need to be imposed.  The method has the 
advantage of allowing Member views to be taken into account on a PR basis.  This is 
more likely to be important in matters of policy rather than the more technical 
consultation papers often published. 
 

Page 45



A report on consultation responses could be submitted to the Committee meeting on a 
regular basis, resulting in the Council’s responses being made publicly available via 
the Committee Management system on the internet. 
 

5 OFFICER PREFERRED OPTION 
 
5.1 In Stage One, Option (ii) allows the involvement of Members on a PR basis, giving the 

opportunity for all Groups to request that a response be prepared.  Provided that 
Members respond to the email consultation and/or accept that there needs to be a 
quick turnaround and cut off date for their response this option can be readily 
managed by Democratic Services. 

 
5.2 In Stage Two, all the options listed can be available as choices once it has been 

determined that a response is required.  Members should be aware however that on 
occasions resources may not be available in the relevant service to prepare a 
response without affecting other work and it will be for the Chief Executive to prioritise 
should this occur. 

 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
There are no direct implications as a result of this report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The S151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no direct legal implications as a result of this report. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Gillian Noall 
Telephone:  01524 582060 
E-mail: gnoall@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 46



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE   
 

Timetable of Meetings  
24th May 2006 

Report of Head of Democratic Services 
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider a timetable of meeting for the Council Business Committee for the forthcoming 
Municipal Year.  

 
 
This report is public  
 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
 That a timetable of Council Business Committee meetings for 2006/07 be agreed. 
  
2. REPORT 
 
2.1 The Council produces an annual timetable of meetings in advance of each Municipal 

Year. 
 
2.2 The timetable for 2006/07 was approved by Council on 8th February 2006 prior to the 

decision to establish the Council Business Committee and no dates have therefore 
been included for this Committee in the timetable. 

 
2.3 Members are requested to consider whether they wish to set a regular series of 

meetings throughout the year for the Council Business Committee or whether they 
would prefer that meetings are called on an ad hoc basis. 

 
 
3. OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS 
 
3.1 Option 1 – to include regular meetings within the annual timetable.  This is the 

recommended course of action so that Members can plan accordingly.  It is suggested 
that meetings be arranged on a relatively frequent basis on the understanding that 
they can be cancelled if there is insufficient business to warrant a meeting.  The nature 
of the terms of reference would indicate that there should not be an undue delay to 
consideration of the committee’s business, but experience over the next six months 
will enable proper consideration of the frequency in determining the timetable for 
2007/08. 

 
3.2 Option 2 - to arrange ad hoc meetings as required.  Whilst this would mean that 

meetings were held whenever required it is often difficult to find dates convenient to all 
Members at short notice. 

 
3.3 The current timetable of meetings is attached for ease of reference in determining 

future dates for the Council Business Committee. 

Agenda Item 10Page 47



 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
There are no direct implications as a result of this report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost of any additional meetings can be met by the existing Democratic Representation 
budget. 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The S151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Constitution requires Council to publish an annual timetable of scheduled meetings prior 
to each Municipal Year.  Notice of any additional meetings must be published at least 5 clear 
days prior to any meeting in accordance with Access to Information legislation, which also 
requires an agenda listing all proposed business to be published at least 5 clear days prior to 
any meeting. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Gillian Noall 
Telephone:  01524 582060 
E-mail: gnoall@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 48



 

 

 
20

06
 

 
 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

TI
M

ET
A

B
LE

 2
00

6/
20

07
 

 
 

 
 

 
20

07
 

 
M

ay
 

Ju
ne

 
Ju

ly
 

A
ug

us
t 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
O

ct
ob

er
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
D

ec
em

be
r 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
M

ar
ch

 
A

pr
il 

M
ay

 
 

M
on

 
1 

  B
an

k 
H

ol
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
1 

 B
an

k 
H

ol
   

 
 

 
 

M
on

 

Tu
e 

2 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
  

 
2 

  
  

 
1 

B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
3 

 
 

2 
 

   
1 

C
ou

nc
il 

 
3 

 
 

  
 

2 
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
4 

1 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

R
eg

 
 

3 
 

 
2 

 
4 

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 R

eg
 

1 
1 

 
3 

EL
EC

TI
O

N
S 

Th
ur

 

Fr
i 

5 
   

2 
 

4 
1 

 
3 

1 
5 

 W
ill

 P
k 

B
d 

2 
2 

 
4 

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

6 
3 

1 
5 

2 
 

4 
2 

6 
3 

3 
 

5 
Sa

t 

Su
n 

7 
4 

2 
6 

3 
1 

5 
3 

7 
4 

4 
1 

6 
Su

n 

M
on

 
8 

5 
3 

  
7 

4 
  

2 
 

6 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

V
 

4 
 

8 
  

5 
5 

 
2 

 
7 

B
an

k 
H

ol
 

M
on

 

Tu
e 

9 
6 

 
4 

  
8 

 
5 

 C
ab

in
et

 
3 

 
7 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l 
5 

  
9 

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

6 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l 

6 
 

3 
  

8 
 

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
10

 A
nn

ua
l C

ou
nc

il 
 

7 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

5 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
9 

6 
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

4 
 JC

C
 

8 
 

6 
C

ou
nc

il 
10

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

7 
C

ou
nc

il 
7 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
4 

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
9 

 
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
11

 C
ou

nc
il 

8 
6 

  
10

 
7 

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 R

eg
 

5 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

R
eg

 
9 

 
7 

 
11

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8 

 
8 

 
5 

 
10

  
Th

ur
 

Fr
i 

12
 

9 
7 

11
 

8 
6 

10
 

8 
12

   
9 

9 
6 

B
an

k 
H

ol
 

11
 

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

13
 

10
 

8 
12

 
9 

7 
11

 
9 

13
 

10
 

10
 

7 
12

 
Sa

t 

Su
n 

14
 

11
 

9 
13

 
10

 
8 

12
 

10
 

14
 

11
 

11
 

8 
13

 
Su

n 

M
on

 
15

 P
la

nn
in

g 
SV

 
12

   
10

   
14

 P
la

nn
in

g 
SV

   
11

 P
la

nn
in

g 
SV

 
9 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
V

  
13

 P
la

nn
in

g 
11

  P
la

nn
in

g 
SV

 
15

  P
la

nn
in

g 
SV

 
12

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
V

 
12

 P
la

nn
in

g 
SV

 
9 

B
an

k 
H

ol
 

14
 

M
on

 

Tu
e 

16
 

13
  B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 P

an
el

 
11

   
15

 
12

  B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

10
  C

ab
in

et
 

14
 C

ab
in

et
 

12
 C

ab
in

et
 

16
  C

ab
in

et
 

13
 B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 P

an
el

 
13

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

10
 

15
 

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
17

 
14

   
C

ou
nc

il 
12

  C
ou

nc
il 

 
16

 
13

   
11

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
  

15
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

 
13

  
17

  J
C

C
 

14
 

14
  

11
   

16
  

W
ed

 

Th
ur

 
18

 
15

   
13

   
17

 
14

 
12

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

 
14

  
18

  
15

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 A

ct
 

15
   

12
  

17
   

 
Th

ur
 

Fr
i 

19
 

16
 W

ill
 P

k 
B

d 
14

 
18

 
15

 
13

 
17

 
15

 
19

 
16

   
16

 
13

  
18

 
Fr

i 

Sa
t 

20
 

17
 

15
 

19
 

16
 

14
 

18
 

16
 

20
 

17
 

17
 

14
 

19
 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

21
 

18
 

16
 

20
 

17
 

15
 

19
 

17
 

21
 

18
 

18
 

15
 

20
 

Su
n 

M
on

 
22

 P
la

nn
in

g 
 

19
 P

la
nn

in
g 

SV
 

17
 P

la
nn

in
g 

SV
 

21
 P

la
nn

in
g 

 
18

  P
la

nn
in

g 
16

 P
la

nn
in

g 
 

20
  

18
 P

la
nn

in
g 

22
  P

la
nn

in
g 

19
  P

la
nn

in
g 

 
19

  P
la

nn
in

g 
 

16
 P

la
nn

in
g 

SV
 

21
   

 
M

on
 

Tu
e 

23
 C

ab
in

et
  

20
  C

ab
in

et
 

18
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
22

 
19

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

17
 G

ra
nt

s C
tte

 
21

  
19

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

23
   

20
  C

ab
in

et
 

20
  C

ab
in

et
 

17
   

22
   

 
Tu

e 

W
ed

 
24

 
21

  J
C

C
 

19
 

23
 

20
  A

ud
it 

18
  

22
  

20
   

24
 A

ud
it 

21
  

21
  J

C
C

 
18

 C
ou

nc
il 

23
 

W
ed

 

Th
ur

 
25

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 A

ct
 

22
 

20
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

A
ct

   
   

  
24

 
21

  
19

 
23

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 R

eg
  

21
  

25
  L

ic
en

si
ng

 R
eg

  
22

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 R

eg
 

22
  L

ic
en

sin
g 

R
eg

 
19

  L
ic

en
si

ng
 A

ct
 

24
  

Th
ur

 

Fr
i 

26
 

23
   

21
 

25
 

22
  W

ill
 P

k 
B

d 
20

 
24

 
22

 
26

 
23

 
23

   
20

 
25

 
Fr

i 

Sa
t 

27
 

24
 

22
 

26
 

23
 

21
 

25
 

23
 

27
 

24
 

24
 

21
 

26
 

Sa
t 

Su
n 

28
 

25
 

23
 

27
 

24
 

22
 

26
 

24
 

28
 

25
 

25
 

22
 

27
 

Su
n 

M
on

 
29

 B
an

k 
H

ol
 

26
 P

la
nn

in
g 

24
 P

la
nn

in
g 

28
 B

an
k 

H
ol

  
25

 
23

  
27

  
25

  B
an

k 
H

ol
  

29
 

26
   

26
   

23
  P

la
nn

in
g 

28
  B

an
k 

H
ol

 
M

on
 

25
 C

ab
in

et
 

Tu
e 

30
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
27

   
B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 P

an
el

 
29

   
26

  
24

  
28

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

26
  B

an
k 

H
ol

 
30

  
27

 G
ra

nt
s C

tte
 

27
  P

er
so

nn
el

 
24

 C
ab

in
et

 
29

   
 

Tu
e 

W
ed

 
31

 
28

 A
ud

it 
26

   
30

 
27

  C
ou

nc
il 

25
  

29
  

27
   

31
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
28

 B
ud

ge
t C

ou
nc

il 
28

  
25

 A
ud

it 
30

 
W

ed
 

Th
ur

 
 

29
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 R
eg

  
27

  L
ic

en
si

ng
 R

eg
  

31
 

28
  L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ct

 
26

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 R

eg
 

30
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ct

 
28

   
 

 
   

29
  

26
  L

ic
en

si
ng

 R
eg

 
31

 
Th

ur
 

Fr
i 

 
30

 
28

 
 

29
 

27
 

 
29

   
 

 
 

30
 W

ill
 P

k 
B

d 
27

 
 

Fr
i 

Sa
t 

 
 

29
 

 
30

 
28

 
 

30
 

 
 

31
 

28
 

 
Sa

t 

Su
n 

 
 

30
 

 
 

29
 

 
31

 
 

 
  

29
 

 
Su

n 

M
on

 
 

 
31

 
 

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

30
 

 
M

on
 

Tu
e 

 
 

 
 

  
31

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
an

el
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
Tu

e 

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank


